MAY 0 5 2016
WASHINGTON STATE SUPREME COURT

APR 1 1 2018

COURT OF APPEALS
DIVISION III
STATE OF WASHINGTON
By

930902

NO. 326551-III

SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

MARISA WUNDERLICH and JOSEPH WONDERLICH, a married couple

Respondents

v.

JOHN P. ROUSE and KARMA ROUSE, a married couple, and THORPE-ABBOTT PROPERTIES LLC,

Petitioners

PETITION FOR REVIEW

ERIC K. NAYES, WSBA NO. 2709 The Nayes Law Firm, P.S. Fernwell Building, Suite 500 505 West Riverside Avenue Spokane, WA 99201-0518 (509) 252-5072

Attorney for Petitioners

A. Identity Of Petitioners

Appellants, John P. Rouse and Karma Rouse, husband and wife, Thorpe-Abbott Properties, LLC, a Washington limited liability company, and the undersigned attorney for appellants, Eric K. Nayes, as Petitioners, ask this Court to accept review of the Court of Appeals decision terminating review designated in Part B of this Petition.

B. Court Of Appeals Decision

The unpublished decision of the Court of Appeals, Division III, was entered under Appeal No. 32655-1-III and filed on November 15, 2015. A Motion for Reconsideration Or, in the Alternative, to Publish Opinion filed by Petitioners. Said Motions were denied by an Order Denying Motion for Reconsideration and Denying Motion to Publish of said Court filed on January 21, 2016, and finally served on the parties on March 11, 2016.

A copy of the decision is in the Appendix at pages A-1 through A
12. A copy of the Order Denying Motion for Reconsideration and

Denying Motion to Publish is in the Appendix at page A-13.

C. Issues Presented For Review

1. Is the decision of the Court of Appeals in conflict with numerous decisions of the Supreme Court and other divisions of the Court of Appeals, when the Court of Appeals refused to review claims of error of the trial court regarding the proper interpretation and application of court

rules de novo as issues of law, but rather reviewed said claims of error on the basis that the trial court has the discretion to ignore the plain meaning of the language of court rules when interpreting and applying the same? [RAP 13.4(b)(1) - (2)].

- 2. Is a significant constitutional law question regarding due process under Article I, section 3, of the Washington State Constitution, and the fifth and fourteen amendments to the United States Constitution, presented when the decision of the Court of Appeals refuses to give effect to the language of Superior Court Civil Rules plain on their face but rather determines that it can defer to the discretion of the trial court to ignore the plain meaning of the language of court rules when interpreting and applying the same? [RAP 13.4(b)(3)].
- 3. Is the decision of the Court of Appeals in conflict with decisions of the Supreme Court and other Courts of Appeal, when the Court of Appeals declined to either review claims of error de novo regarding issues that the superior court refused to decide or to remand the matter to the superior court to determine the issues originally ignored? [RAP 13.4(b)(1) (2)].

D. Statement Of The Case

1. Parties

Petitioners, John P. Rouse and Karma Rouse, are husband and wife. Petitioner, Thorpe-Abbott Properties, LLC, is a Washington limited liability company, of which John P. Rouse and Karma Rouse are the only

members. The undersigned petitioner, Eric K. Nayes, is the attorney for the petitioners.

Respondents, Marisa Wunderlich and Joseph Wunderlich, are wife and husband and residents of Spokane County, Washington.

2. Facts and Procedure in Superior Court Relevant to Issues Presented For Review

The primary subject matter of the underlying action was a claim of adverse possession by respondents to real estate owned by petitioner, Thorpe-Abbott Properties, LLC. [CP 288-293]. However, the appeal to the Court of Appeals and the within Petition for Review are directed only to specific issues of law that arose during the course of discovery in the action.

In particular, by a **single** document entitled "Plaintiffs' First Set of Interrogatories and Requests for Production Propounded to Defendant, John Rouse, Karma Rouse and Thorpe-Abbott Properties, LLC," dated February 21, 2014 [hereinafter sometimes referred to as "Plaintiffs' First Set"], Marshall Casey, the attorney for respondents, purportedly propounded **jointly** to the named petitioners thirteen (13) statements denominated as an "interrogatory" and seven (7) statements denominated as a "request for production." [CP 141-158]. The undersigned attorney, Eric K. Nayes, on behalf of petitioners, timely objected to "Plaintiffs' First Set" by two separate pleadings, one directed to the purported interrogatories [CP 160-167] and one directed to the purported requests for

production [CP 169-180]. Among the grounds for objection to the purported interrogatories were (1) that the purported interrogatories did not comply with the plain language of CR 33 in that the same were not directed to a single party, and (2) that the purported interrogatories did not comply with the plain mandatory language of CR 33(a) which provides: "Interrogatories shall be so arranged that after each separate question there shall appear a blank space reasonably calculated to enable the answering party to place the written response." [CP 161]. Among the grounds for objection to the purported requests for production was that the purported requests did not comply with the plain mandatory language of CR 34(b)(2)(B) which specifies that the request "shall specify a reasonable time, place and manner of making the production and performing the related acts." [CP 180]. In addition, objections were made to the purported interrogatories [CP 160-167] and the purported requests [CP 169-180] on numerous separate and specific grounds well supported by prevailing case law. [CP 197-198].

A CR 26(i) conference was held at the offices of Marshall Casey regarding "Plaintiffs' First Set" and the objections of petitioners. The undersigned attorney, Eric K. Nayes, requested that the CR 26(i) conference be recorded for enumerated reasons; petitioners agreed to pay the appearance fee for a court reporter but not any fees for transcription. [CP 184-186]. The CR 26(i) conference was held at the offices of

Marshall Casey, the attorney for respondents, and recorded by Dorothy Stiles, RMR, CRR. [CP 58].

Thereafter, Mr. Casey moved for sanctions [CP 91-103] against the undersigned attorney and his clients regarding the objections to the purported interrogatories, the objections to the purported requests for production, and the recording of the CR 26(i) conference, on the grounds the same all violated CR 26(g). After a hearing, but without seeing or reviewing any of the objections to "Plaintiffs' First Set," the court entered its "Order for Sanctions Against Mr. Nayes" on May 30, 2014, determining that the unseen objections to "Plaintiffs' First Set" and the request for recording the CR 26(i) conference all violated CR 26(g). The court awarded sanctions against Mr. Nayes in the amount of \$1401.30 for said ostensible CR 26(g) violations. Petitioners timely filed a "Motion for Reconsideration of Order for Sanctions," [CP 133-135], which motion was denied by the superior court. [CP 286-287]. Thereafter, the superior court entered a monetary "(Proposed) [sic] Judgment Against Eric KNayes [sic]" on March 13, 2015. [CP 576-577] based on the same sanctions.

3. Procedure and Decision in Court of Appeals Relevant to Issues Presented For Review

On July 24, 2014, Petitioners filed a "Notice of Appeal to Court of Appeals, Division III" of (1) the "Order for Sanctions Against Mr. Nayes," entered on May 30, 2014 [CP 126-130], and (2) the "Order on Reconsideration," entered on July 15, 2014 [CP 286-287], bringing those orders before the Court of Appeals. [CP 277-287]. On March 26, 2015,

Petitioners filed a "Supplemental Notice of Appeal to Court of Appeals, Division III" of the "(Proposed)[sic] Judgment Against Eric KNayes [sic]" entered on March 13, 2015 [CP 576-577], bringing that judgment before the Court of Appeals.

On November 15, 2015, the Court of Appeals filed an unpublished decision on review of this case. [Appendix, pp. A-1 through A-12]. Thereafter, petitioners timely filed a Motion for Reconsideration Or, in the Alternative, to Publish Opinion. Said motions were denied by an Order Denying Motion for Reconsideration and Denying Motion to Publish filed on January 21, 2016, and finally served on the parties on March 11, 2016. [Appendix, p. A-13]. Petitioners now seek review by the Supreme Court of the decision of the Court of Appeals terminating review.

E. Argument

1. Why Review Should Be Accepted

RAP 13.4(b) provides:

A petition for review will be accepted by the Supreme Court only:

- (1) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a decision of the Supreme Court; or
- (2) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a decision of another division of the Court of Appeals; or
- (3) If a significant question of law under the Constitution of the State of Washington or of the United States is involved; or
- (4) If the petition involves an issue of substantial public interest that should be determined by the Supreme Court.

The above criteria are satisfied in the present case. First, the criteria under subsections (1) and (2) above are satisfied based upon the clear conflict between the decision of the Court of Appeals for which review is sought and the cases of the Supreme Court and other divisions of the Court of Appeals which are cited in this Petition for Review. Second, as evidenced by in the issues presented for review, significant and serious questions of law involving both the State and Federal Constitutions exist with respect to enumerated aspects of the decision for which review is sought, and which questions have far reaching effects upon the lives and assets of attorneys and their clients in this State. Accordingly, the criteria under subsection (3) above is satisfied. Finally and furthermore, all the issues presented in this Petition for Review are clearly a matter of substantial public interest and concern to attorneys and their clients in this State, especially since the issues presented involve, as a matter of first impression, the proper interpretation and application of the plain meaning of certain of the Superior Court Civil Rules. Consequently, the criteria under subsection (4) above is satisfied. Hence, the Supreme Court should accept review.

2. Legal Argument In Support Of Review

a. Court of Appeals Refused to Review De Novo as Issues of Law the Claimed Errors of the Trial Court Regarding the Proper Interpretation and Application of Superior Court Civil Rules, Which Refusal Renders the Decision of the Court of Appeals in Conflict with Numerous Decisions of the Supreme Court and Other Divisions of the Court of Appeals

The appeal of petitioners and their attorney of the sanctions imposed by the superior court court, ostensibly under CR 26(g), regarding the objections of petitioners to "Plaintiffs' First Set" and petitioner's request to have the CR 26(i) conference recorded, and the assignments of error and issues presented to the Court of Appeals regarding said sanctions, were based on the undeniable fact that first Marshall Casey, the attorney for respondents, in preparing and serving "Plaintiffs' First Set," as a matter of law, did not comply with the plain language CR 33(a) and CR 34(b)(2)(B) regarding interrogatories and requests for production. Second, assignments of error and issues presented to the Court of Appeals were based on the fundamental fact that the superior court, as a matter of law, improperly and erroneously refused to apply the plain language and meaning of CR 26(g), CR 33(a) and CR 34(b)(2)(B) to actual facts and circumstances of this matter. In addressing these assignments of error and issues regarding the interpretation and application of the Superior Court Civil Rules, the Court of Appeals stated "This court reviews discovery sanctions rulings for abuses of discretion." [Appendix, p. A-5]. In other words, since sanctions were involved, the Court of Appeals refused to review de novo as issues of law the proper interpretation and application by the superior court of the contested Superior Court Civil Rules. Rather, in reaching its decision, the Court of Appeals apparently erroneously reviewed these assignments of error and issues of petitioners on the grounds that the superior court has the discretion to apply or not to apply

the plain language and meaning of Superior Court Civil Rules as the superior court sees fit.

This decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with every decision of the Supreme Court and every decision of other divisions of the Court of Appeals that petitioners could find. Claims of error regarding questions of law are reviewed de novo. Sunnyside Valley Irrigation District v. Dickie, 149 Wn.2d 873, 880, 73 P.3d 369 (2003). Issues regarding the construction or interpretation of a statute or court rule are questions of law. See, State v. Greenwood, 120 Wn.2d 585, 592, 845 P.2d 971 (1993); State v. McIntyre, 92 Wn.2d 620, 622-23, 600 P.2d 1009 (1979); City of Spokane v. Spokane County, 158 Wn.2d 661, 673, 146 P.3d 893 (2006); W. Telepage, Inc. v. City of Tacoma Department of Finances, 140 Wn.2d 599, 607, 998 P.2d 884 (2004); State v. J.P., 149 Wn.2d 444, 450, 69 P.3d 318 (2003); In re Matter of Kistenmacher, 134 Wn.App. 72, 79 n.5, 138 P.3d 648 (2006); and In re Marriage of Wilson, 117 Wn.App. 40, 45, 68 P.3d 1121 (2003). Accordingly, claims of error regarding the proper application and interpretation of court rules are to be independently reviewed and decided by the Court of Appeals on a de novo basis. See, generally, State v. Karp, 69 Wn. App. 369, 372, 848 P.2d 1304 (1993). Furthermore, when the meaning of a statute or court rule is apparent on its face, a reviewing court must give effect to that plain meaning. See, McGinnis v. State, 152 Wn.2d 639, 645, 99 P.3d 1240

(2004). "Language which is clear upon its face does not require or permit any construction." <u>State v. McIntyre</u>, <u>supra</u>, at 622.

In reference to this matter, petitioners objected to the purported interrogatories on the grounds that the same were in the form of a single document directed to jointly to all parties. In this regard, CR 33(a) specifically provides: "Any party may serve upon any other party written interrogatories to be answered by the party served " [Emphasis added]. Without dispute, the purported interrogatories did not comply with the plain language of CR 33(a) regarding the clearly singular word "party." [CP 141-158]. Petitioners timely objected to this failure of respondents to comply with the foregoing clear and plain provision of CR 33(a). [CP 161]. Notwithstanding, the Court of Appeals construed the plain, clear and singular word "party" in CR 33(a) to include any married couple, as well as any entity owned by them, that were parties to an action. Consequently, the Court of Appeals decided that, under those circumstances, interrogatories could be contained in a single document directed to multiple parties regardless of the plain and clear language of CR 33(a). Hence, the Court of Appeals likewise decided that the timely objection of petitioners to the interrogatories on the foregoing basis violated CR 26(g) and was therefore subject to the sanctions awarded. [Appendix, p. A-9 through A-10].

In addition, petitioners objected to purported interrogatories of respondents on the grounds that said purported interrogatories did not

comply with a mandatory provision of CR 33(a), which provision states:

Interrogatories **shall** be so arranged that after each separate question there **shall** appear a blank space reasonably calculated to enable the answering party to place the written response. [Emphasis added].

Without dispute, the record discloses that none of the purported interrogatories propounded by respondents to petitioners [CP 141-158] came close to complying with the foregoing mandatory provision of CR 33(a), and that petitioners timely objected, in accordance with CR 33(a), to this failure of respondents to comply with said mandatory provision. [CP 161]. Notwithstanding, the decision of the Court of Appeals determined (1) that there was no actual necessity that Marshall Casey, the attorney for respondents, comply with this mandatory provision of CR 33(a), (2) that any failure to comply should be informally pointed to a non-complying opposing attorney, and (3) that any timely objection under CR 33(a) to the failure to comply with this mandatory provision is therefore improper and subject to sanctions under CR 26(g), as such an objection causes delay and added expense. [Appendix, p. A-9].

The foregoing enumerated applications and interpretations of CR 33(a) by the Court of Appeals are in conflict with all of the cases of the Supreme Court and other divisions of the Court of Appeals cited above. The language of CR 33(a) is plain and clear on its face. Marshall Casey, the attorney for respondents, absolutely did not comply with the quoted provisions of CR 33(a), including the plain, clear and mandatory language

contained therein. The objections of petitioners to said failure of Mr. Casey to comply were timely, otherwise consistent with CR 33(a) and warranted by existing law. Since the language is plain and clear, the construction of CR 33(a) by the Court of Appeals (1) that the word "party" includes any married couple and any entity owned by them, (2) that any mandatory provision is actually optional, (3) that informal objections to non-compliance with CR 33(a) are required of parties or an attorney before the expiration of 30 days, and (4) that timely objections to non-compliance with CR 33(a) are improper and subject to sanctions under CR 26(g), is not permissible. Hence, the decision of the Court of Appeals is clearly in conflict with the cited decisions of the Supreme Court and other Courts of Appeal.

Furthermore, petitioners responded to the purported requests for production of respondents and objected, in part, on the grounds that said purported requests for production did not comply with the mandatory provision of CR 34(B)(2)(b), which provision states that the request "shall specify a reasonable time, place and manner of making the production and performing the related acts." [Emphasis added]. The decision of the Court of Appeals determined that the objection by petitioners to the failure of Marshall Casey, the attorney for respondents, to comply with this mandatory requirement of CR 34(B)(2)(b) bordered on the frivolous, that there was no requirement that Marshall Casey, the attorney for respondents, comply with this mandatory requirement, and that any timely

objection under CR 34(b) to the failure of Mr. Casey to comply with this mandatory provision is improper and subject to monetary sanctions under CR 26(g). [Appendix, p. A-10].

Again, the foregoing enumerated application and interpretation of CR 34(B)(2)(b) by the Court of Appeals is also in conflict with all of the cases of the Supreme Court and other Courts of Appeal cited above. The language of CR 34(B)(2)(b) is plain and clear on its face. Marshall Casey, the attorney for respondents, absolutely did not comply with said quoted mandatory provision of CR 34. Again, the response and objection of petitioners to this failure of Mr. Casey to comply was timely, otherwise consistent with CR 34 and warranted by existing law. Since the language is plain and clear, the construction of CR 34(B)(2)(b) by the Court of Appeals that said mandatory provision is actually optional, and that a timely response and objection by petitioners to non-compliance with the provision is therefore improper and subject to sanctions under CR 26(g), is not permissible. Accordingly, the decision of the Court of Appeals regarding CR 34(B)(2)(b) is clearly in conflict with the cited decisions of the Supreme Court and other Courts of Appeal. Hence, for all the reasons stated, acceptance of review by the Supreme Court is fully warranted under RAP 13.4(b)(1) and (2).

Additionally, the determinations of the Court of Appeals concerning the proper interpretation and application of the plain and clear language of CR 26(g), CR 33(a) and CR 34(B)(2)(b) are determinations of

first impression in this State and, as near as can be ascertained, of first impression in these United States, and, additionally, implicitly reverse long established principles of law. Thus, said determinations of the Court of Appeals involve issues of substantial public interest that should be determined by the Supreme Court. Therefore, acceptance of review by the Supreme Court is fully warranted under RAP 13.4(b)(4) as well.

b. Court of Appeals Denied Petitioners Due Process By Refusing to Give Effect to the Language of Superior Court Civil Rules Plain on Their Face

The Court of Appeals deprived petitioners of due process of law under Article I, section 3, of the Washington State Constitution, and the fifth and fourteen amendments to the United States Constitution, by refusing to give effect to the plain and clear language of Superior Court Civil Rules at issue, namely CR 26(g), CR 33(a) and CR 34(b)(2)(B), in complete derogation of the published Superior Court Civil Rules and corresponding case law. As stated in the legal argument under 2.a. above, the Court of Appeals determined that there was no necessity for either opposing counsel to comply with, nor the superior court to give effect to or apply, the plain language of CR 33(a) or CR 34(b)(2)(B). Rather, the Court of Appeals determined that any objection by Eric K. Nayes, attorney for petitioners, to the fact that Marshall Casey, the attorney for respondents, did not follow applicable Superior Court Rules was improper regardless of the plain and clear language of said rules, and that Eric K. Nayes, the attorney for petitioners, was therefore subject personally to the

payment of monetary sanctions awarded by the superior court under CR 26(g).

Contrary to the determination of the Court of Appeals, petitioners, including their attorney, Eric K. Nayes, all have an unqualified, due process right to expect the superior court and the Court of Appeals to follow the rules and procedures, including the Superior Court Civil Rules, promulgated and adopted by the Supreme Court. Once a court rule has been promulgated and adopted, petitioners, as litigants to a controversy, have a clear right under the due process clauses of the state and federal constitutionals to expect the superior court and the Court of Appeals to follow that rule and the express procedures adopted thereunder.

U.S.Const., amend. 5 and 14; Wash.St.Const., Art. I, sec. 3; see also, United States v. Ferretti, 635 F.2d 1089, 1093 (3rd Cir. 1980).

Since a rule promulgated by the Supreme Court carries with it the full force and effect of law [see, State v. McIntyre, supra, at 622-623; State v. Greenwood, supra, at 592], the superior court and the Court of Appeals have absolutely no discretion or leeway as to whether abide by and follow the same. Generally, Ferretti, at 1093. Stated differently, a rule, once enunciated, cannot "then be blithely ignore[d] . . . thereby leading astray litigants who depend upon it." Nat'l Labor Relations Bd. v. Horn & Hardart Co., 439 F.2d 674, 679 (2nd Cir. 1974). In this vein, established rules of procedure or protocol cannot be set aside simply for purposes of momentary expediency. Accord, United States v. Diaz-Villafane, 874

F.2d 43,46 (1st Cir.), cert. denied, 493 U.S. 862, 107 L.Ed.2d 133, 110 S.Ct. 177 (1989). Consequently, the superior court and the Court of Appeals in this matter were obligated to act and decide the issues raised by petitioners regarding the Superior Court Civil Rules within the parameters of said rules as established by the Supreme Court, unless or until such rules are either revised or repealed by that Court. See, Ferretti, at 1093; see also, Service v. Dulles, 354 U.S. 363, 1 L.Ed.2d 1403, 77 S.Ct. 1152 (1957); United States ex rel. Accardi v. Shaughnessy, 347 U.S. 260, 265, 98 L.Ed. 681, 74 S.Ct. 499 (1954); Nat'l Labor Relations Bd. v. Campbells Prod. Dept., 623 F.2d 876, 880-81 (3rd Cir. 1980); Nat'l Labor Relations Bd. v. Pincus Bros., Inc. - Maxwell, 620 F.2d 367, 378-79 (3rd Cir. 1980)(Garth, J. concurring); Horn & Hardart Co., at 679; Schmidt v. Silver, 89 F.R.D. 519, 520 (E.D. Pa. 1981). The failure to do so deprives petitioners, including their attorney, Eric K. Nayes, of due process of law.

Hence, in summary, the Court of Appeals determined that no necessity existed for either opposing counsel nor the superior court to give effect to or apply the plain language of Superior Court Civil Rules, namely CR 26(g), CR 33(a) or CR 34(b)(2)(B)3(a), as adopted by the Supreme Court. Further, the Court of Appeals determined that Eric K. Nayes, as the attorney for petitioners, by objecting to the failure of opposing counsel and the superior court to follow said court rules, was personally subject to monetary sanctions under CR 26(g). Under the constitutional provisions and law cited above, such determinations of the Court of Appeals clearly

deprived petitioners, including their attorney, Eric K. Nayes, of due process of law. Accordingly, because the decision of the Court of Appeals clearly deprives petitioners of due process of law under the both the Washington state and federal constitutions, acceptance of review by the Supreme Court is fully warranted under RAP 13.4(b)(3).

c. Court of Appeals Refused to Properly Address
Objections and Arguments of Petitioners That Some
Interrogatories and Requests for Production Were
Broad, Vague or Otherwise Deficient on Grounds
Supported by Fact and by Law, Which Refusal Renders
the Decision of the Court of Appeals in Conflict with
Decisions of the Supreme Court and Other Divisions of
the Court of Appeals

The Court of Appeals stated, on page 10, in footnote 6 [Appendix, p. A-10]:

In this light, we do not address the arguments that some of the interrogatories were broad, vague, or otherwise deficient. The trial court did not address any of those specific complaints, so this court is not in a position to address the merits of them. They apparently were lost in the sound and fury of the other arguments.

By this footnote, the Court of Appeals clearly admits it does not understand its proper role on appeal in addressing the assignments of error, issues and arguments of petitioners. Petitioners submit that this clear admission of the Court of Appeals maybe clarifies the further erroneous decisions of said Court set forth above determining that the clear and plain meaning of Superior Court Civil Rules do not necessarily have to be followed by Marshall Casey, attorney for respondents, nor the superior court, and that any objections by petitioners, and in particular their

attorney, Eric K. Nayes, to the failure of Marshall Casey to follow the clear and plain meaning of said rules is improper and subject to monetary sanctions under CR 26(g).

This Court of Appeals is correct that petitioners objected to individual statements contained in the "Petitioners First Set" and denominated as an "interrogatory" on separate and specific grounds supported by fact and by law. Likewise, petitioners objected to individual statements denominated as a "request" on separate and specific grounds supported by fact and by law. Additionally, the Court of Appeals is correct that petitioners brought these objections before the trial court [CP 197-198, CP 200] and that the trial court refused to address the same. Regardless, and again, the decision of the Court of Appeals, in refusing to address said arguments, is in conflict with every decision of the Supreme Court and every decision of other divisions of the Court of Appeals that petitioners could find.

First, applicable case law provides that if the superior court refuses to decide an issue (the situation in this case), the Court of Appeals may do so de novo if the case was decided solely on the basis of written material (again, as is the situation in this matter). See, generally, Sarruf v. Miller, 90 Wn.2d 880, 883, 586 P.2d 466 (1978); Simpson v. State, 26 Wn.App. 687, 691, 615 P.2d 1297 (1980). Second, in the alternative, the Court of Appeals may remand the matter back to the superior court to determine the specific issues which the superior court originally ignored. See, generally,

<u>Holzer v. Rhodes</u>, 24 Wn.2d 184, 163 P.2d 811 (1945). However, no law whatsoever allows the Court of Appeals to ignore its duty and just refuse to address the issues.

Accordingly, the decision of the Court of Appeals to not address clear issues and arguments that some purported interrogatories and requests for production were broad, vague, or otherwise deficient, and to either decide the issues de novo or remand the same to the superior court, is further clearly in conflict with the cited decisions of the Supreme Court and another division of the Court of Appeals. Thus, for the reasons stated, again acceptance of review by the Supreme Court is fully warranted under RAP 13.4(b)(1) and (2).

F. Conclusion

The Supreme Court should not condone the use by the Court of Appeals of an "Unpublished Opinion" to purportedly apply the certain Superior Court Civil Rules against petitioners, and more particularly, against Eric K. Nayes, the attorney for petitioners, when the reasons and rationale underlying said opinion and the application of said rules are not supported by any law or precedent whatsoever. Accordingly, given the points and authorities contained in this "Petition for Review," John P. Rouse and Karma Rouse, husband and wife, Thorpe-Abbott Properties, LLC, a Washington limited liability company, and the undersigned attorney for petitioners, Eric K. Nayes, as Petitioners, respectfully request

that review of the designated decision of the Court of Appeals be accepted by the Supreme Court.