## RECEIVED SUPREME COURT STATE OF WASHINGTON CLERK'S OFFICE

May 11, 2016, 1:16 pm

#### SUPREME COURT

## RECEIVED ELECTRONICALLY

# OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON NO. 93090-2

(Court of Appeals No. 326551-III)

MARISA WUNDERLICH and JOSEPH WUNDERLICH, a married couple

Respondents,

VS.

JOHN P ROUSE and KARMA ROUSE, a married couple, and THORPE-ABBOTT PROPERTIES LLC,

**Appellants** 

#### RESPONDENTS' SUPPLEMENTAL BRIEF

M CASEY LAW, PLLC Marshall Casey, WSBA #42552 1106 N. Washington, Suite B Spokane, WA 99201 (509) 252-9700 Attorney for Respondents

# **

#### III. Issues presented for review

While naming three issues presented, the first and third stated issues seem to be whether or not the appellate court reviewed the trial court's sanctions under the proper standard, abuse of discretion.

The second issue seems to be the reframing of the de novo versus abuse of discretion standard under a constitutional claim.

The respondents add no new issues, and request these issue(s) be denied since the standard of review for CR 26(g) sanctions is well settled in Washington.

#### IV. Statement of the case

This matter arose as an adverse possession case. CP 288-293. After its filing, Mr. Rouse moved for one of the key witnesses to be declared incapacitated and a guardianship appointed. CP 29-34 On January 3, 2014 Mr. Rouse was deposed. CP 14.

not to answer two sets of questions. CP 15-17. The first was in regards to the guardianship, and the second was in regards to certain questions on the Defendants' answer. Mr. Nayes continued this objection for quite some time. CP 24-26.

A motion to compel a second deposition was done and fees were requested at that time. CP 9. The motion was granted, and the question of fees was reserved till later. CP 46

On February 21, 2014 a set of interrogatories was delivered to Mr. Nayes that covered the Rouses and their closely held entity. In March of 2014 pure objections were returned. Counsel for the Wunderlichs immediately requested a CR 26(i). CP 326-356. This request was responded to by Mr. Nayes asking for it to be recorded and last for a significant amount of time. *Id*.

During this time the Defendants opposed a moving of the trial date that was to make up for the delays in discovery. The Wunderlichs' moved for discovery sanctions under CR 26(g) and CR 37. The trial court found that sufficient cause existed for the sanctions and granted the sanctions to stop the discovery behavior and to move the case forward on the issues. CP 269-273.

The Defendants appealed the sanctions order, and the appellate court upheld the sanctions as appropriate. The Defendants now only

court upheld the sanctions as appropriate. The Defendants now only appeal whether or not the CR 26(g) sanctions are appropriate.

#### V. Argument

The standard of review for CR 26(g) sanctions was addressed in *Physicians Ins. Exch. & Ass'n v. Fisons Corp.*, 122 Wn.2d 299, 338, 858 P.2d 1054, 1075 (1993), where it is clearly stated "[w]e hold that the proper standard to apply in reviewing sanctions decisions is the abuse of discretion standard." The Appellants spend a lot of time arguing for de novo review on their CR 26(g) sanctions. The Appellants quote non-sanction cases on questions of fact and interpretation of law to make their argument, but this is incorrect. The position of de novo review for CR 26(g) sanctions was argued by one of the parties in *Fisons*, and the *Fisons* court rejected de novo review, holding the proper standard to apply in reviewing sanctions decisions is the abuse of discretion standard. *Fisons*,

The Appellants imply that the abuse of discretion standard stopped the Appellate Court from reviewing the law in relation to these sanctions. This argument misinterprets the abuse of discretion standard. A court abuses its discretion when it bases its decision on facts not in the record, or when it applies the wrong legal standard. *Hundtofte v. Encarnacion*, 181 Wn.2d 1, 6 (2014). Here the Appellate Court looked at the legal standard of CR 26(g) and the facts in the record and found no abuse.

This clear precedent on the standard of review that has been on the books since 1993 and means that the appellate court is not in conflict with the Supreme Court on the standard of review, and that the Appellate Court is not likely in conflict with other Washington courts of appeal. As for the issues of constitutionality, this seems to be misconstruing CR 26(g).

CR 26(g) gives three things an attorney certifies on signing a discovery document, that responses were

- (1) consistent with the rules;
- (2) not interposed for any improper purpose, such as to harass or to cause unnecessary delay or needless increase in the cost of litigation; and
- (3) not unreasonable or unduly burdensome. Op. p. 8, citing CR 26(g), *Fisons*, 122 Wn.2d at 344. Along with this the purpose is "[r]esponses in discovery must be 'consistent with the letter, spirit and purpose of the rules.'" *Id*.

The Appellants spend a lot of time arguing how their answers were consistent with the letter of the rule, but ignore the other two items they certified under CR 26(g), that the objections were not done to harass, increase cost, or cause needles delay, along with not being unreasonably burdensome. CR 26(g) provides for sanctions under that rule separately from CR 37, and that is what was properly applied here. *Fisons*, 122 Wn.2d at 339-340. CR 26(g) has more than just "consistent" with the rule

as governing the response, but the Appellants argue that technically

"consistent" with their only defense. CR 26(g) was created to "in order to

provide a deterrent to discovery abuses as well as an impetus for candor

and reason in the discovery phase of litigation." Id. at 343. It was within

this framework that the appellate court upheld the trial court's discretion

on the sanctions.

IV. Conclusion

Because the standard of review has been in place since 1993 as abuse of

discretion, and it encompasses the review of a proper application of law

the Respondents believe the issue of a new standard of review for CR

26(g) sanctions is not proper. For the interests of efficient justice, we ask

the Supreme Court to deny review.